
 
Telephone Enquiries: Ben Caulfield,  
Email:  ben.caulfield@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Wednesday, 15 March 2023 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Special Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
Thursday, 23rd March, 2023 at 3.00 pm, 
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Josh Allen 
Vice-Chair:  Councillor Susan Hayes 
 
Councillors Noordad Aziz, Melissa Fisher, Zak Khan and Patrick McGinley 
Co-optee Shahed Mahmood 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1   Apologies for Absence and Substitutions   
 
 

2   Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

3   Minutes of the last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
 

4   Lancashire County Council - Levelling Up Project   
 
To engage with Councillors on Lancashire County Council’s Levelling Up Proposals in 
Hyndburn. 
 

Public Document Pack



Page 2 of 2 

 

5   Economic Development Function  (Pages 7 - 10) 
 
To inform the Committee about new arrangements for the Council’s Economic 
Development function including advice and support for business. 
 
Recommended - That the Special Scrutiny Committee note and 
comment on the report. 
 

6   Levelling Up Update  (Pages 11 - 22) 
 
To respond to the request from the Special Overview and Scrutiny Committee for a 
general update on the Council’s LUF work. 
 
Recommended - That the Committee notes the report. 
 

7   Future Items for the Agenda   
 
To discuss future items to be added to the Work Programme of this Committee. 
 

 
 



 
1 

 
SPECIAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Thursday, 1st December, 2022 

 
Present:  
 
 
 
In Attendance: 

Councillor Josh Allen (in the Chair),  
Councillors Zak Khan, Bernard Dawson 
Co-optees: Shahed Mahmood 
 
Councillors Miles Parkinson and Peter Britcliffe 
 

Apologies Councillors Noordad Aziz, Susan Hayes and Patrick McGinley 

  

 
130 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Patrick McGinley, Susan Hayes and Noord Aziz. 
Councillor Bernard Dawson substituted for Councillor Aziz. 
 

131 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

132 Minutes of the last Meeting 
 
The minutes of the last meeting on 27th September 2022 were submitted and approved as a 
correct record, with no questions from Committee members. 
  
Resolved        -           That the minutes from the Special Scrutiny Committee meeting 
on 27th September 2022 be approved as a correct record. 
 

133 Levelling Up Update 
 
The Leader of the Council presented the report to the Committee on Levelling Up. He 
highlighted that the bid was submitted on schedule. Details of what the bid included were 
outlined in the report, involving improvements to the Market Hall, Burtons Chambers and 
Market Chambers. The outcome of the bid will be known before Christmas. 
 
The Leader referred to the Levelling Up bigger picture, including progress with the Local 
Plan, which will see a large scale development bringing aspirational housing to Huncoat 
Garden Village and the Leisure Transformation Project.  
 
The Chair asked the Leader what was intended as the remit of this Committee. Was it to 
Scrutinise the levelling up bid, or was it to have input into the general levelling up of the 
area? The Leader indicated that he felt the Committee had a role to play in the bigger 
picture of levelling up of the area. 
 
The Leader suggested the Committee may wish to scrutinise opposition views on the local 
plan at a future date. 
 
The Leader highlighted the following in terms of levelling up the area: 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 
 
 

 

 
2 

- Housing strategy including use of brownfield sites (former Huncoat power station as 
an example) where they are available 

- Strategic employment development close to the M65 
- High quality housing and jobs integral to keeping people and attracting people to live 

in Hyndburn 
- External funding availability dictating which projects are brought forward at certain 

times 
 
Councillor Khan said he agreed that investment is required in housing and employment and 
he was supportive of the Local Plan. He suggested that the Council could communicate its 
intentions better in order to get a more positive response from the public. The Leader 
agreed with this, however, he pointed out that consulting with the public was not always 
straight forward, as the public often engage more if they are against something rather than 
if they are in support of it.  
 
Councillor Khan said a lot of positive work is going on unseen and that we need to get 
better at showing the positive work. The Leader responded that positivity is high amongst 
local business leaders and stakeholders and the politics is causing negative issues. 
 
Shahed Mahmood asked why the Local Plan has taken so long to develop. The Leader 
responded that the Local Plan is a long term strategic document that is  developed to a 
timeline and follows on from the previous local plan. 
 
Councillor Bernard Dawson said that people have a right to object to a Local Plan, and no 
plan will ever be created which is supported by all politicians.  
 
Councillor Kahn asked what “Plan B” was is the levelling up bid was unsuccessful. The 
Leader responded that the projects put forward for the Levelling Up bid are 3 of many plans 
for the town centre. The Council will continue to look for funding to deliver these and other 
priorities for the town. Councillor Britcliffe also pointed out that our current focus should be 
optimistic based on a successful bid. 
 
Shahed Mahmood asked how the Council was engaging with the private sector. Councillor 
Britcliffe responded, highlighting that private sector engagement was essential, particularly 
with regards to the Arndale Centre which is in private ownership. He referred to the 
potential of an Economic Development Officer who would have a role focussed on 
engaging with private businesses.  
 
Councillor Bernard Dawson asked if the Levelling Up bid is all or nothing. Officers 
responded that this was the case for round 1 so is assumed to be the case for round 2. 
 
Additional questions were asked and responded to on the following: 
 

- Timelines for UK Shared Prosperity Fund decision 
- Timelines for LCCs Levelling Up Bid 
- Role of an Economic Development Officer 
- Improvements to street scene 

 
The Chair thanked Councillor Parkinson, Councillor Britcliffe and Officers for their report to 
the Committee. 
 
The report was noted. 
 

 
 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
3 

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

REPORT TO: Special Scrutiny Committee 

DATE: 23 March 2023 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Peter Britcliffe - Levelling Up 

REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Hoyle, Head of Regeneration and Housing 

TITLE OF REPORT: Economic Development Function 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform the Committee about new arrangements for the Council’s Economic 

Development function including advice and support for business. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 

I recommend that the Special Scrutiny Committee: 
 
2.1 Note and comment on the report. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 As part of the Council’s Levelling Up plans, the Committee has expressed an interest 

on the Council’s economic development function. 
 
3.2 The Council’s Corporate Strategy (2018 – 2023) sets the strategic framework and says 

that the Council will create greater opportunities for all to access improved employment 
opportunities and to strengthen Hyndburn’s economy through employment growth. 

 
3.3 This objective was reflected in the Council’s Accrington Town Centre Investment Plan 

(TCIP) and its UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) proposals.  The TCIP explains 
how a range of projects and initiatives will improve Accrington town centre’s 
environment and encourage sustainable growth for the local economy.  The UKSPF is 
part of the Government’s levelling up agenda.  The Council’s approved UKSPF 
business plan includes growth and support for new business, support for helping 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

businesss with the transition to low carbon initiatives and support for business growth 
in the transformed Burton’s Building and Market Chambers buildings. 

 
3.4 The following arrangements are being put into place to support economic growth 

across the Borough: 
 
 New Emerging Local Plan (Hyndburn 2037) 
 
3.5 This sets out the policy framework and site allocations for new employment growth 

across the Borough.  The draft plan is scheduled to be submitted to the Planning 
Inspectorate late spring time with a view to adoption early 2024.  The Plan makes 
available 59 hectares of new land for employment uses, especially at Altham South 
and Whitebirk.  These two new strategic employment sites will be the two key locations 
for new business and employment locations over the Plan period. 

 
 New Economic Development Manager 
 
 3.6 This will be a new, key post reporting to the Head of Regeneration and Housing, 

funded through the UKSPF programme.  The post will be the main contact for business 
and employers including existing business that wants to grow, and new business that 
would like to relocate in the Borough.  As well as providing business and employers 
with support and sign posting to other appropriate support and advice, the post will 
lead on new funding opportunities that supports employment growth. 

 
 Heritage Regeneration 
 
3.7 This will be a contracted consultancy service, initially for 12 months, to assist the 

Council with heritage led regeneration projects, which in turn support wider business 
growth with a focus on attracting heritage led investment.  This will lead to new 
business and employment opportunities with a focus on our historic buildings such as 
the Market Hall, Burton Chambers, Market Chambers, Victorian Arcade, etc.   

 
 Boost  
 
3.8 This is Lancashire County Council’s business growth hub providing business support 

for new businesses and for businesses that want to expand.  Boost employs dedicated 
business advisors who work directly with local business providing advice and support.  
Boost is currently funded through the European Regional Development Fund, and it is 
proposed to continue to fund the growth hub through the majority of the Lancashire 
local authorities pooling some of their UKSPF to ensure this dedicated service 
continues.  It provides a wide range of services including brokerage and sign posting, 
basic boot camps for new starter businesses, and mentoring for more established 
businesses. 

 
 Business Support:  Low Carbon 
 
3.9 The Council will use some of its UKSPF to support the East Lancashire Chamber of 

Commerce with specific support to help businesses reduce their carbon footprint and 
works towards net zero as well as reduce energy bills.  In addition UKSPF will be used 

Page 8



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

to help a small number of select businesses with new low carbon technology which 
aims to drive new low carbon manufacturing, creating jobs and products for export. 

 
 Support Market Hall and Burton Chambers  
 
3.10 This is a small fund created and funded through Hyndburn’s new UKSPF to fund year 

1 promotion packages for the Market Hall and Burton Chambers. 
 
 Business and Marketing Co-ordination – Hyndburn Town Centres 
 
3.11 The Council’s Business and Marketing Co-ordinator provides town centre business 

with advice and support including sign-posting to other advice and support agencies. 
 
 East Lancashire Chamber of Commerce 
 
3.12 The Chamber plays a key role in supporting economic growth in East Lancashire 

including Hyndburn.  The Chamber provides business Advice services as well as 
specialist services such as international trade including growth in importing and 
exporting goods.  The Council will continue to work closely with the Chamber and sign 
post local businesses for advice and support. 

 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 The report provides an overview of the Council’s economic function and how it links 

with other agencies to provide business advice and support. 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 The Council’s TCIP and UKSPF plans were subject to extensive consultation with a 

wide range of stakeholders and have been subsequently approved by Cabinet. 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

All services described in the report are met from 
existing Council budgets for 2023/24. 
 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

There are no legal or human rights implications arising 
directly from this report 

 

Assessment of risk 
 

There are none directly from this report.  The Council’s 
budget, TCIP and UKSPF were all subject to separate 
risk assessments. 

 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 

The Council is subject to the public sector equality 
duty introduced by the Equality Act 2010.  When 
making decisions Cabinet and Council consider its 

Page 9

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


 

Page 4 of 4 
 

decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

duties under the 2010 Act.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



 

REPORT TO: Special Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

DATE: 23 March 2023 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Miles Parkinson OBE - Leader of the Council 

REPORT AUTHOR: Steve Riley – Executive Director (Environment) 

TITLE OF REPORT: Levelling up Update 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

  

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To respond to the request from the Special Overview and Scrutiny Committee for a 

general update on the Council’s LUF work. 
 

2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee note the report. 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 The Levelling Up Fund was announced at the 2020 Spending Review and will focus on 

capital investment in local infrastructure projects that require up to £20m of funding and 
builds on prior programmes such as the ‘Local Growth Fund’ and ‘Towns Fund’.  

 
3.2 Cabinet gave its formal approval in support of the Town Centre Stakeholder Board’s 

recommendations that the Council’s LUF submission should focus around the following 
three principal interventions; 

  
1. Redevelopment to an area within the Indoor Market Hall and outdoor pavilions 

along Peel Street – the intervention known as Market Hall. 
2. Improvements and redevelopment to the properties of 43-59 Blackburn Road / 2-

4 Church Street – the intervention known as Market Chambers. 
3. Improvements and redevelopment to the block 61-69 Blackburn Road – the 

intervention known as Burtons Chambers. 
 
3.3 Interventions 2 and 3 are not in the Council’s ownership and so Cabinet supported the 

appointment of CBRE, who are a nationally recognised property services consultant, to 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 

undertake acquisition discussions on behalf of the Council and Womble Bond Dickinson, 
to assist with the legal aspect of this work. 

 
3.4 Regular updates have been submitted to Cabinet and Council throughout 2021/22 and 

there are links to the various papers at the end of this report. 
 
 Expenditure on Bid Submission 
3.5 All eligible authorities received £125k of capacity funding from the levelling up fund to 

support the development of their LUF submissions and in 2021 the Council created a 
£150k Economic Recovery Fund. These budgets will be sufficient to cover up to £275k 
of work involved with the bid submission.  

 
3.6 Following the announcement of the Council’s successful £20m funding in January 2023, 

a further £120k of expenditure was incurred between April and July 2022 to finalise the 
submission and continue to progress the acquisition work. These costs will now be 
included in the Council’s first progress report / financial claim. 

 
Acquisitions 

3.7 Following the announcement of the funding, the Council acquired the freehold rights to 
Burtons Chambers. Discussions are now advancing with the two tenants to secure vacant 
possession, with one showing a keen interest in leasing a Council shop in the Town 
Centre. 

 
3.8 With regards to the acquisition of Market Chambers, three of the five known freeholders 

wish to proceed with a sale by agreement and work continues with progressing drafting 
the Heads of Terms and other legal work with these parties. 
 

3.9 Cabinet have been informed of the progress to secure the freehold and leasehold rights 
for Burtons Chambers and Market Chambers, including the possibility of the Council 
having to CPO if a sale by agreement and vacant possession could not be secured.  

  
  The LUF Programme 
3.10 The Levelling Up fund spending timescales are extremely tight and bid criteria requires 

some capital spending having to be made within the financial year 2022/23 and all 
spending to be completed by 31 March 2025. Whilst there is a suggestion in the funding 
guidance spending may be permitted within the financial year 2025/26, this is only in 
exceptions circumstances and at the sole discression of the funding body, DLUHC. The 
Council however, agreed to continue with some elements of work, either because it is 
required for the bid submission or where leaving it could lead to project delays. 

 
3.11 There was a number of meetings with the Market Traders presenting the Market Hall 

redevelopment proposals during the bid preparation stage and two meeting since the 
successful funding announcement. The traders raised many questions, some of which 
officers were able to a provide response to but for others, the information is still unknown. 
The attached Appendix A shows the questions raised by the traders and the response 
which has been provided. 

 
3.12 There was the request from the Market’s Portfolio Holder to direct all questions through 

the Market Manager as there were many examples of incorrect information being 

Page 12



 

provided to traders. At the meeting on the 7th March, all traders agreed to this request 
and that monthly updates would be provided by handouts from the Market Manager and 
traders would be invited to face to face updates each quarter with the Portfolio Holder 
and Executive Director.      

 
3.13 Following the appointment of the Project Director and given the bid was submitted over 

7 months ago, she has commenced an initial piece of work up to the end of March 
involving a RIBA Stage 2 refresh of all the work undertaken to produce the bid. This will 
help to understand how far each work stream progressed and where further 
information/work is needed prior to the main work around progressing the 
designs/drawings, planning permissions, listed building consents, further costing work, 
operator procurement etc. before progressing to formal tenders and appointment of 
contractors to commence the works in Burtons Chambers and the Market Hall at the start 
of 2024. The attached Appendix B provides a brief programme for this work. 

 
3.14 As part of project governance, work is underway drafting and agreeing the reporting 

structure for the delivery stage of the projects, which will include regular reports to Cabinet 
this Special Scrutiny Committee, the Town Centre Stakeholder Board / wider stakeholder 
group and partners. Officers from the Council’s Accountancy, Legal and Audit teams will 
also be involved in regular progress meetings.  

  
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not Applicable 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Portfolio holder 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 

None from this report 

Legal and human rights 
implications 

None from this report  

Assessment of risk None from this report 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  

None from this report 

 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 

Page 13

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


 

7.1 Levelling Up Update 
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=323&MId=2762&Ver
=4  

 
7.2 Property Acquisitions – LUF Interventions October 2022 (Exempt) 

https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2697&Ver
=4  

 
7.3 Levelling Up Funding bid update report to Cabinet – June 2022 

https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2695&Ver
=4 

 
7.4 Town Centre Investment Plan and UK Shared Prosperity Fund – June 2022 

https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2694&Ver
=4  

 
7.5 Town Centre Investment Plan and Levelling Up Funding bid submission – March 2022 

https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2617&Ver
=4  

 
7.6 Town Centre Investment Plan and Levelling Up Funding bid update report to full Council 

-January 2022 
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=2603&Ver
=4 

 
 
7.7 Levelling Up Funding Bid update report to Cabinet - September 2021 

https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2611&Ver
=4 

 
7.8 Appointment of an external consultant to work on the Council’s Levelling Up Fund bid – 

June 2021 
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2617&Ver
=4  

 
 
8. Freedom of Information 
 
8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 

Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information 
Act 2000. 

 

Page 14

https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=323&MId=2762&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=323&MId=2762&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2697&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2697&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2695&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2695&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2695&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2694&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2694&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2617&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2617&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=2603&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=2603&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=2603&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2611&Ver
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2611&Ver
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2611&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2617&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2617&Ver=4


Questions from the trader meeting on 7 February 
 

1. How secure is our future and business in the market, will we have a business 
to sell? 

 The Council is fully supporting the market and that is no more evident 
through this £10m+ redevelopment project. Traders have agreed the 
market needs to change and things cannot remain the same. A sample 
polling exercise was undertaken in 2021 and there was a lot of 
requests for more food and drink offerings in the TC. The Market Hall 
project will split the ground floor hall into 50% ‘food and drink units’ and 
50% ‘traditional style market stalls’. No change in vision is being 
considered on the balcony – these areas have always intended to act 
as incubator units for start-up / small business to see if it works and as 
they become successful move into larger premises in the Town Centre. 

 The LUF funding must be spent by end March 2025 and a rough 
programme means traders need to be decanted by the start of 2024 
and the reopening will be April 2025. 

 The Council will be seeking a contractor to operate the food and drink 
operation and this might expand to the managing the whole market 
provision. However, it is not known for certain until after the tender 
exercise. 

 
2. Do we get to come back automatically when the refurbishment is complete? 
3. Do you want us to come back? 
4. Can you write something down and guarantee that we will be relocated at the 

end of the lease? 

 Traders will be entitled to apply to come back into the market through 
the new operator’s process / new lease agreement. 

 The Market Manager has been informed by some traders they will be 
retiring at the end of the year and we will need to understand who they 
are as we don’t want to make arrangements for anyone who is leaving.  

 The Market Manager is speaking with traders so the Council has an 
understanding on who is wishing to continue trading during the 
relocation and who would like to return after redevelopment works. 
Ultimately to ensure the market is a success, traders will need to fill the 
stalls/units when the works have been completed and the Council has 
allocated a budget from its UKSPF to promote the reopening, which will 
include food, drink, market stall traders. 
 

5. Do we have to pay rent when we are relocated, for the new premises? 
6. When we relocate, we will have a reduction in footfall and turn over, is there 

financial support for this period? 
7. Do we have to pay for services e.g. water/electric and gas if so how this will 

be distributed to each traders fairly? 

 The rent levels during the decant period have yet to be agreed. The 
Council will review information on what was agreed during the previous 
decant to understand what was provided/charged for.  

 No specific financial support has been considered at the moment but 
seems reasonable to review rents and service charges once the 
Council understand numbers/requirements of traders during the decant 

Page 15



(sales space/storage/utilities etc.). Definitely no more than currently 
paying. 

 
8. Do you have any ideas where we can be relocated to? 
9. Who will help us to relocate? 
10. When we move, what do we leave behind or would we have to empty the 

whole stall e.g. display wall? 
11. When we relocated will we get the same amount of floor/stall space including 

storage? 
12. Can we stay together when moved as people don’t just come for one stall 

they come for a few at the same time? 

 Initial thoughts is that during the last decant, units were located down 
Broadway but there may be space in the front of the Market Hall/Town 
Hall but could consider empty shops. However, until the Council knows 
numbers not sure how much space is needed. 

 The Council will look to provide assistance with the traders relocating 
and the Market Manager will be speaking with traders to understand 
what would be needed – from straightforward units with just lighting, to 
those which need refrigeration, water, connections to a sewer and floor 
space. 

 Until all the designs have been finalised, the Council does not know if 
the redevelopment will require traders to remove everything from their 
stalls. If this is required the Council will consider how best to provide 
this additional storage. 

 Trader positions in the redeveloped hall are some way off and is 
something to consider when the Market Manager gathers the 
information around what is needed – would it make sense to group 
those with the same needs i.e. traders which need to discharge water 
or refrigeration etc? 
 

13. Will we have a pray room located in town that we can use? 

 There is a quiet room within the Broadway Offices which Council staff 
use to pray and officers will look into opening up this facility to traders 
and officers will also ask Hyndburn Leisure if there is anywhere which 
may be suitable in the Town Hall. 

 
14. Are the public toilets on Peel Street going to be opened in town if the markets 

toilets are closed? 

 The Council will look at options already available in the TC and also the 
need for temporary units where necessary. 

 
15. Will rent remain the same in the Market Hall when the refurbishment is 

complete? 
16. When and if we return will we be in the same place/stall? 

 The Council is unable to say what the levels of rent will be. However, 
with all the work in decarbonising / energy efficiencies / insulation / 
installation of solar panels, the Council is trying to keep utility costs 
down. That said, the Council knows the current discounted levels are 
generally achievable for traders. 

Page 16



 The Council has not given any thought to locations when retuning back 
but if traders currently have X square foot and need the same again 
(and if that’s the only unit) then it makes sense to consider the same 
spot. It might also be beneficial to look at grouping some trader themes 
together but again no decisions have been made. 

 
 
 

Further Questions from the meeting on 7 March 
 

17. Can we have more information about the business plan needed for traders 
wishing to return to the market hall? 

 See Q2 and in addition, the Market Manager will share the market’s 
new trader information literature which has been in place for a number 
of years and asks for a range of basic information before any lease is 
agreed. However, it was explained to the trades that an operator will 
have their own process/documentation and so the Council cannot 
provide more details. 
 

18. Do traders get an incentive to come back into the market hall after the 
redevelopment? 

 The Council cannot say what rents will be charged once the market hall 
reopens and if there will be any incentives. 
 

19. Can we have examples of the temporary accommodation? Will there be 
canopies for displays on the outside? 

 The Market Manager will print off and hand out one example of a unit 
that is on the internet but this is just one company and any final 
decision on cabin provision will need to be procured so traders need to 
be aware it’s just an example. 
 

20. Will the rent go up when the market reopens? 

 See Q15 above 
 

21. If we do want to come back will we get the same cellar space if it’s available? 

 See Q1 and 16 above 
 

22. What will the new opening times be? 

 This is still to be decided. However, it is highly unlikely both the food 
and drink offering and traditional market trading offering will have the 
same opening days/times but if market traders wish to extend beyond 
the market trader times to be open during the food and drink offering 
then the Council would not see this would not be an issue for an 
operator.  

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Rider Levett Bucknall

13 Jan 23

LUF/UKSPF INTERVENTION PROJECTS
WORKSTREAM KICK OFF MEETING

P
age 19



Rider Levett Bucknall

Stage Plan – Mobilisation & RIBA2 Refresh

Why? Why are we focussing on these workstreams for this stage

Workstream Rational

Operator Model & 

Procurement 

The operating model informs the strategy for procurement, which in turn impacts 

programme and design requirements.

Communications The LUF success will have attracted attention, and the procurement activity could heighten 

this.  A proactive plan for comms will help us manage this and make best use of it.

Design Readiness Reviewing the RIBA2 design and identifying immediate priorities will enable us to be best 

placed to start design effectively in the next stage

Social Value & 

Benefits

To deliver real benefits for Accrington and to meet funder expectations we’ll need an action 

plan to communicate and require this through team assembly

Project Controls Agreeing and communicating the processes and tools that will help us manage the project 

from the start will set us up to succeed

Team Assembly Building on the procurement strategy to develop a detailed action plan to ensure team 

assembly for future stages happens smoothly, efficiently and compliantly

P
age 20



An Introduction to RLB

Progress to Date

Project Team Operator  Procurement Other Consultants Operators Contractor/s

SCOPE

The design and project services 

required to deliver the project eg

Project Managers, Cost Managers, 

Architects, Engineers, Technical 

Specialists, surveys and 

investigations

ESTIMATED VALUE

££ - above thresholds

PROCUREMENT START

Spring 2023

LIKELY ROUTE

Appointment of Multi-Disciplinary 

Team via a Framework Agreement 

(G10), likely NHS SBS as per 

approved Procurement Strategy

PROCUREMENT LEAD

Programme Director

SCOPE

The legal and consultancy 

services required to procure 

operators for Market Hall and 

Burton Chambers eg lawyers, 

agents, financial. 

ESTIMATED VALUE

££ - above thresholds

PROCUREMENT START

Spring 2023

LIKELY ROUTE

Appointment of Multi-Disciplinary 

Team via a Framework Agreement 

(G10)

PROCUREMENT LEAD

Project Director

SCOPE

Any other services not part of the 

first two teams eg The 

ProgrammeDirector. These should 

be minimal. 

ESTIMATED VALUE

Varies – some may be below 

threshold other below threshold

PROCUREMENT START

Will vary

LIKELY ROUTE

Framework Agreement (G10) if 

possible or quote/tender (G5-G8 

or G12)

PROCUREMENT LEAD

Project Director (or SRO where 

Programme Director conflicted)

SCOPE

The operation and potentially fit 

out of Market Hall and Burton 

Chambers

ESTIMATED VALUE

££ - above thresholds

PROCUREMENT START

Spring 2023

LIKELY ROUTE

Tender following one of the 

mechanisms available above 

threshold (G12). Likely to be 

Competitive Dialogue. 

PROCUREMENT LEAD

Operator Procurement Team

SCOPE

The works to refurbish the 

buildings

ESTIMATED VALUE

££ - above thresholds

PROCUREMENT START

Summer/Autumn 2023

LIKELY ROUTE

Appointment of Contractor/s via a 

Framework Agreement (G10), 

likely Scape as per approved 

Procurement Strategy or similar

PROCUREMENT LEAD

Project Team

P
age 21



Rider Levett Bucknall

Stage Plan – Mobilisation & RIBA2 Refresh

When? When will this take place and be complete

P
age 22


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last Meeting
	5 Economic Development Function
	6 Levelling Up Update
	Appendix A - Market Traders Questions regarding redevelopment
	Appendix B - RIBA Stage 2 Refresh programme (002)


